

HOUSE BILL No. 4853

June 29, 1987, Introduced by Reps. Nye, Ouwinga, Sparks, Hoffman, Miller, O'Connor, Walberg, Van Regenmorter, Power, Fitzgerald, Trim, Gilmer, Law, Bender, Martin, Munsell, Strand, Randall, Gnodtke, DeLange, Krause, Brotherton, Middaugh, Hillegonds, Van Singel, Giese, Willis Bullard, Emmons, Hayes, Browne, Bandstra, Hoekman, Honigman and Dunaskiss and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

A bill to amend sections 303, 625, 625a, 625c, and 625i of Act No. 300 of the Public Acts of 1949, entitled as amended "Michigan vehicle code,"

section 303 as amended by Act No. 216 of the Public Acts of 1983, section 625 as amended by Act No. 309 of the Public Acts of 1982, and sections 625a and 625c as amended and section 625i as added by Act No. 310 of the Public Acts of 1982, being sections 257.303, 257.625, 257.625a, 257.625c, and 257.625i of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN ENACT:

1 Section 1. Sections 303, 625, 625a, 625c, and 625i of Act
2 No. 300 of the Public Acts of 1949, section 303 as amended by Act
3 No. 216 of the Public Acts of 1983, section 625 as amended by Act
4 No. 309 of the Public Acts of 1982, and sections 625a and 625c as
5 amended and section 625i as added by Act No. 310 of the Public

1 Acts of 1982, being sections 257.303, 257.625, 257.625a,
2 257.625c, and 257.625i of the Michigan Compiled Laws, are amended
3 to read as follows:

4 Sec. 303. (1) The secretary of state shall not issue a
5 license under this act:

6 (a) To a person, as an operator, who is 17 years of age or
7 less, except that the secretary of state may issue a license to a
8 person who is not less than 16 years of age and who has satisfac-
9 torily passed a driver education course and examination given by
10 a public school or nonpublic school of this or another state
11 offering a course approved by the department of education, or an
12 equivalent examination as prescribed in section 811. The secre-
13 tary of state may issue to a person not less than 14 years of age
14 a restricted license as provided in this act. This subdivision
15 shall not apply to a person who has been the holder of a valid
16 driver's license issued by another state, territory, or posses-
17 sion of the United States or another sovereignty for at least 1
18 year immediately before application for a driver's license under
19 this act.

20 (b) To a person, as a chauffeur, who is 17 years of age or
21 less, except that the secretary of state may issue a license to a
22 person who is not less than 16 years of age and who has satisfac-
23 torily passed a driver education course and examination given by
24 a public school or nonpublic school of this or another state
25 offering a course approved by the department of education, or an
26 equivalent examination as prescribed in section 811.

1 (c) To a person whose license has been suspended during the
2 period for which the license was suspended.

3 (D) TO A PERSON WHO IS CONVICTED UNDER SECTION 625(7) OR
4 (8).

5 (E) ~~(d)~~ To a person whose license has been revoked under
6 this act until the later of the following:

7 (i) The expiration of not less than 1 year after the license
8 was revoked.

9 (ii) The expiration of not less than 5 years after the date
10 of a subsequent revocation occurring within 7 years after the
11 date of any prior revocation.

12 (F) ~~(e)~~ To a person who is an habitual violator of the
13 criminal laws relating to operating a vehicle while impaired by
14 or under the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled
15 substance or a combination of intoxicating liquor and a con-
16 trolled substance, or with a blood alcohol content of 0.10% or
17 more by weight of alcohol. Convictions of any of the following,
18 whether under a law of this state, a local ordinance substan-
19 tially corresponding to a law of this state, or a law of another
20 state substantially corresponding to a law of this state, shall
21 be prima facie evidence that the person is an habitual violator
22 as described in this subdivision:

23 (i) Two convictions under section 625(1), ~~or~~ (2), OR (9),
24 or ~~1 conviction under section 625(1) and 1 conviction under sec-~~
25 ~~tion 625(2)~~ A COMBINATION OF CONVICTIONS UNDER ANY 2 OF THOSE
26 SUBSECTIONS within 7 years.

1 (ii) Three convictions under section 625b within 10 years.

2 (G) ~~-(f)-~~ To a person who in the opinion of the secretary of
3 state is afflicted with or suffering from a physical or mental
4 disability or disease which prevents that person from exercising
5 reasonable and ordinary control over a motor vehicle while oper-
6 ating the motor vehicle upon the highways.

7 (H) ~~-(g)-~~ To a person who is unable to understand highway
8 warning or direction signs in the English language.

9 (I) ~~-(h)-~~ To a person who is an habitually reckless driver.
10 Four convictions of reckless driving under this act or any other
11 law of this state relating to reckless driving or under a local
12 ordinance of this state or a law of another state which defines
13 the term "reckless driving" substantially similar to the law of
14 this state shall be prima facie evidence that the person is an
15 habitually reckless driver.

16 (J) ~~-(i)-~~ To a person who is an habitual criminal. Two con-
17 victions of a felony involving the use of a motor vehicle in this
18 or another state shall be prima facie evidence that the person is
19 an habitual criminal.

20 (K) ~~-(j)-~~ To a person who is unable to pass a knowledge,
21 skill, or ability test administered by the secretary of state in
22 connection with the issuance of an original operator's or
23 chauffeur's license or original indorsement.

24 (L) ~~-(k)-~~ To a person who has been convicted, received a
25 probate court finding, or been determined responsible for 2 or
26 more moving violations under a law of this state, a local
27 ordinance substantially corresponding to a law of this state, or

1 a law of another state substantially corresponding to a law of
2 this state, within the preceding 3 years, if the violations
3 occurred prior to the issuance of an original license to the
4 person in this or another state.

5 (2) Upon receipt of the appropriate records of conviction,
6 the secretary of state shall revoke the operator's or chauffeur's
7 license of a person having any of the following convictions,
8 whether under a law of this state, a local ordinance substan-
9 tially corresponding to a law of this state, or a law of another
10 state substantially corresponding to a law of this state:

11 (a) Four convictions of reckless driving within 7 years.

12 (b) Two convictions of a felony involving the use of a motor
13 vehicle within 7 years.

14 (c) Two convictions under section 625(1), ~~or~~ (2), OR (9),
15 or ~~1 conviction under section 625(1) and 1 conviction under sec-~~
16 ~~tion 625(2)~~ A COMBINATION OF CONVICTIONS UNDER ANY 2 OF THOSE
17 SUBSECTIONS within 7 years.

18 (D) ONE CONVICTION UNDER SECTION 625(7) OR (8).

19 (E) ~~(d)~~ Three convictions under section 625b within 10
20 years.

21 (3) The secretary of state shall revoke a license under sub-
22 section (2) notwithstanding a court order issued under section
23 625 or 625b, or a local ordinance substantially corresponding to
24 section 625(1) or (2) or 625b.

25 Sec. 625. (1) A person, whether licensed or not, who is
26 under the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled
27 substance, or a combination of intoxicating liquor and a

1 controlled substance, shall not operate a vehicle upon a highway
2 or other place open to the general public, including an area des-
3 ignated for the parking of vehicles, within the state. A peace
4 officer may, without a warrant, arrest a person when the peace
5 officer has reasonable cause to believe that the person was, at
6 the time of an accident, the driver of a vehicle involved in the
7 accident and was operating the vehicle upon a public highway or
8 other place open to the general public, including an area desig-
9 nated for the parking of vehicles, in the state while in viola-
10 tion of this subsection or of subsection (2), or of a local ordi-
11 nance substantially corresponding to this subsection or subsec-
12 tion (2).

13 (2) A person, whether licensed or not, whose blood contains
14 0.10% or more by weight of alcohol, shall not operate a vehicle
15 upon a highway or other place open to the general public, includ-
16 ing an area designated for the parking of vehicles, within the
17 state.

18 (3) The owner of a vehicle or a person in charge or in con-
19 trol of a vehicle shall not authorize or knowingly permit the
20 vehicle to be operated upon a highway or other place open to the
21 general public, including an area designated for the parking of
22 motor vehicles, within the state by a person who is under the
23 influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled substance, or a
24 combination of intoxicating liquor and a controlled substance.

25 (4) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a person
26 who is convicted of a violation of subsection (1), (2), or (3) is
27 guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by imprisonment for not more

1 than 90 days, or a fine of not less than \$100.00 nor more than
2 \$500.00, or both, together with costs of the prosecution. As
3 part of the sentence for a violation of subsection (1) or (2),
4 the court shall order the secretary of state to suspend the
5 operator's or chauffeur's license of the person for a period of
6 not less than 6 months nor more than 2 years. The court may
7 order the secretary of state to issue to the person a restricted
8 license permitting the person during all or a specified portion
9 of the period of suspension to drive only to and from the
10 person's residence and work location; in the course of the
11 person's employment or occupation; to and from an alcohol or drug
12 education program or treatment program as ordered by the court;
13 to and from the person's residence and an educational institution
14 at which the person is enrolled as a student; or pursuant to a
15 combination of these restrictions. The court shall not order the
16 secretary of state to issue a restricted chauffeur's license
17 which would permit a person to operate a truck or truck tractor,
18 including a trailer, which hauls hazardous material. The court
19 shall not order the secretary of state to issue a restricted
20 license unless the person states under oath and the court finds
21 that the person is unable to take public transportation to and
22 from his or her work location, place of alcohol or drug education
23 or treatment, or educational institution, and does not have any
24 family members or others able to provide transportation. The
25 court order and license shall indicate the person's work location
26 and the approved route or routes and permitted times of travel.

1 For purposes of this subsection, "work location" includes, as
2 applicable, either or both of the following:

3 (i) The specific place or places of employment.

4 (ii) The territory or territories regularly visited by the
5 person in pursuance of the person's occupation.

6 (5) A person who violates subsection (1) or (2) or a local
7 ordinance substantially corresponding to subsection (1) or (2)
8 within 7 years of a prior conviction may be sentenced to impris-
9 onment for not more than 1 year, or a fine of not more than
10 \$1,000.00, or both. As part of the sentence, the court shall
11 order the secretary of state to revoke the operator's or
12 chauffeur's license of the person. For purposes of this section,
13 "prior conviction" means a conviction under subsection (1) or
14 (2), a local ordinance substantially corresponding to subsection
15 (1) or (2), or a law of another state substantially corresponding
16 to subsection (1) or (2).

17 (6) A person who violates subsection (1) or (2) or a local
18 ordinance substantially corresponding to subsection (1) or (2)
19 within 10 years of 2 or more prior convictions, as defined in
20 subsection (5), is guilty of a felony. As part of the sentence,
21 the court shall order the secretary of state to revoke the
22 operator's or chauffeur's license of the person.

23 (7) A PERSON WHO VIOLATES SUBSECTION (1) OR (2) AND AS A
24 RESULT CAUSES THE DEATH OF ANOTHER PERSON IS GUILTY OF A FELONY,
25 PUNISHABLE BY IMPRISONMENT FOR NOT MORE THAN 10 YEARS, OR A FINE
26 OF NOT MORE THAN \$5,000.00, OR BOTH. AS PART OF THE SENTENCE FOR
27 A CONVICTION UNDER THIS SUBSECTION, THE COURT SHALL ORDER THE

1 SECRETARY OF STATE TO REVOKE THE OPERATOR'S OR CHAUFFEUR'S
2 LICENSE OF THE PERSON.

3 (8) A PERSON WHO VIOLATES SUBSECTION (1) OR (2) AND AS A
4 RESULT CAUSES SERIOUS INJURY LESS THAN DEATH TO ANOTHER PERSON IS
5 GUILTY OF A FELONY, PUNISHABLE BY IMPRISONMENT FOR NOT MORE THAN
6 5 YEARS, OR A FINE OF NOT MORE THAN \$2,000.00, OR BOTH. AS PART
7 OF THE SENTENCE FOR A CONVICTION UNDER THIS SUBSECTION, THE COURT
8 SHALL ORDER THE SECRETARY OF STATE TO REVOKE THE OPERATOR'S OR
9 CHAUFFEUR'S LICENSE OF THE PERSON.

10 (9) A PERSON WHO VIOLATES SUBSECTION (1) OR (2) AND AS A
11 RESULT CAUSES BODILY INJURY LESS THAN SERIOUS INJURY TO ANOTHER
12 PERSON IS GUILTY OF A MISDEMEANOR, PUNISHABLE BY IMPRISONMENT FOR
13 NOT MORE THAN 1 YEAR, OR A FINE OF NOT MORE THAN \$1,000.00, OR
14 BOTH. AS PART OF THE SENTENCE FOR A CONVICTION UNDER THIS SUB-
15 SECTION, THE COURT SHALL ORDER THE SECRETARY OF STATE TO REVOKE
16 THE OPERATOR'S OR CHAUFFEUR'S LICENSE OF THE PERSON.

17 (10) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "SERIOUS INJURY" MEANS SUB-
18 STANTIAL BODILY INJURY; INJURY THAT CAUSES PERMANENT DISFIGURE-
19 MENT; INJURY THAT CAUSES IMPAIRMENT OF HEALTH OR IMPAIRMENT OF A
20 BODY PART WHICH CAN BE OBJECTIVELY MANIFESTED IN A SCIENTIFIC OR
21 MEDICAL CONTEXT AND WHICH CAN HAVE AN IMPACT ON A PERSON'S ABIL-
22 ITY TO LIVE A NORMAL LIFE; OR INJURY THAT NECESSITATES IMMEDIATE
23 AND SERIOUS MEDICAL TREATMENT.

24 (11) ~~(7)~~ As part of the sentence for a violation of sub-
25 section (1) or (2), or a local ordinance substantially corre-
26 sponding to subsection (1) or (2), the court may order the person
27 to perform service to the community, as designated by the court,

1 without compensation, for a period not to exceed 12 days. ~~The~~
2 AS PART OF THE SENTENCE FOR A VIOLATION OF SUBSECTION (7), (8),
3 OR (9), OR A LOCAL ORDINANCE SUBSTANTIALLY CORRESPONDING TO
4 SUBSECTION (7), (8), OR (9), THE COURT MAY ORDER THE PERSON TO
5 PERFORM SERVICE TO THE COMMUNITY, AS DESIGNATED BY THE COURT,
6 WITHOUT COMPENSATION, FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED 90 DAYS. A
7 person shall reimburse the state or appropriate local unit of
8 government for the cost of insurance incurred by the state or
9 local unit of government as a result of the person's activities
10 under this subsection.

11 (12) ~~(8)~~ Before imposing sentence for a violation of sub-
12 section (1), ~~or~~ (2), (7), (8), OR (9), or a local ordinance
13 substantially corresponding to subsection (1), ~~or~~ (2), (7),
14 (8), OR (9), the court shall order the person to undergo screen-
15 ing and assessment by a person or agency designated by the office
16 of substance abuse services, to determine whether the person is
17 likely to benefit from rehabilitative services, including alcohol
18 or drug education and alcohol or drug treatment programs. As
19 part of the sentence, the court may order the person to partici-
20 pate in and successfully complete 1 or more appropriate rehabili-
21 tative programs. The person shall pay for the costs of the
22 screening, assessment, and rehabilitative services.

23 (13) ~~(9)~~ Before accepting a plea of guilty under this sec-
24 tion, the court shall advise the accused of the statutory conse-
25 quences possible as the result of a plea of guilty in respect to
26 suspension or revocation of an operator's or chauffeur's license,

1 the penalty imposed for violation of this section, and the
2 limitation on the right of appeal.

3 (14) ~~(10)~~ The operator's or chauffeur's license of a
4 person found guilty of violating subsection (1), ~~or~~ (2), (7),
5 (8), OR (9), or a local ordinance substantially corresponding to
6 subsection (1), ~~or~~ (2), (7), (8), OR (9), shall be surrendered
7 to the court in which the person was convicted, and the court
8 shall immediately forward the surrendered license and an abstract
9 of conviction to the secretary of state. The abstract of convic-
10 tion shall indicate the sentence imposed. Upon receipt of, and
11 pursuant to the abstract of conviction, the secretary of state
12 shall suspend or revoke the person's license and, if ordered by
13 the court and the person is otherwise eligible for a license,
14 issue to the person a restricted license stating the limited
15 driving privileges indicated on the abstract. If the license is
16 not forwarded to the secretary of state, an explanation of the
17 reason why the license is absent shall be attached. If the con-
18 viction is appealed to circuit court, that court may, ex parte,
19 order the secretary of state to rescind the suspension, revoca-
20 tion, or restricted license issued pursuant to this section
21 PENDING THAT APPEAL.

22 Sec. 625a. (1) The amount of alcohol or presence of a con-
23 trolled substance or both in the driver's blood at the time
24 alleged as shown by chemical analysis of the person's blood,
25 urine, or breath shall be admissible into evidence in a criminal
26 prosecution for any of the following:

1 (a) A violation of section 625(1), (2), ~~or~~ (3), (7), (8),
2 OR (9), or 625b, or of a local ordinance substantially
3 corresponding to section 625(1), (2), ~~or~~ (3), (7), (8), OR (9),
4 or 625b.

5 (b) Felonious driving, negligent homicide, or manslaughter
6 resulting from the operation of a motor vehicle while the driver
7 is alleged to have been impaired by or under the influence of
8 intoxicating liquor or a controlled substance or a combination of
9 intoxicating liquor and a controlled substance, or to have had a
10 blood alcohol content of 0.10% or more by weight of alcohol.

11 (2) If a test is given, the results of the test shall be
12 made available to the person charged or the person's attorney
13 upon written request to the prosecution, with a copy of the
14 request filed with the court. The prosecution shall furnish the
15 report at least 2 days before the day of the trial and the
16 results shall be offered as evidence by the prosecution in a
17 criminal proceeding. Failure to fully comply with the request
18 shall bar the admission of the results into evidence by the
19 prosecution.

20 (3) Except in a prosecution relating solely to a violation
21 of section 625(2), the amount of alcohol in the driver's blood at
22 the time alleged as shown by chemical analysis of the person's
23 blood, urine, or breath shall give rise to the following
24 presumptions:

25 (a) If there was at the time 0.07% or less by weight of
26 alcohol in the defendant's blood, it shall be presumed that the
27 defendant was not under the influence of intoxicating liquor.

1 (b) If there was at the time in excess of 0.07% but less
2 than 0.10% by weight of alcohol in the defendant's blood, it
3 shall be presumed that the defendant's ability to operate a vehi-
4 cle was impaired within the provisions of section 625b due to the
5 consumption of intoxicating liquor.

6 (c) If there was at the time 0.10% or more by weight of
7 alcohol in the defendant's blood, it shall be presumed that the
8 defendant was under the influence of intoxicating liquor.

9 (4) A sample or specimen of urine or breath shall be taken
10 and collected in a reasonable manner. Only a licensed physician,
11 or a licensed nurse or medical technician under the direction of
12 a licensed physician and qualified to withdraw blood acting in a
13 medical environment, at the request of a peace officer, may with-
14 draw blood for the purpose of determining the amount of alcohol
15 or presence of a controlled substance or both in the person's
16 blood, as provided in this act. Liability for a crime or civil
17 damages predicated on the act of withdrawing blood and related
18 procedures shall not attach to a qualified person who withdraws
19 blood or assists in the withdrawal in accordance with this act
20 unless the withdrawal is performed in a negligent manner.

21 (5) The tests shall be administered at the request of a
22 peace officer having reasonable grounds to believe the person has
23 committed a crime described in subsection (1). A person who
24 takes a chemical test administered at the request of a peace
25 officer, as provided in this section, shall be given a reasonable
26 opportunity to have a person of his or her own choosing
27 administer 1 of the chemical tests described in this section

1 within a reasonable time after his or her detention, and the
2 results of the test shall be admissible and shall be considered
3 with other competent evidence in determining the innocence or
4 guilt of the defendant. If the person charged is administered a
5 chemical test by a person of his or her own choosing, the person
6 charged shall be responsible for obtaining a chemical analysis of
7 the test sample. The person charged shall be informed that he or
8 she has the right to demand that a person of his or her choosing
9 administer 1 of the tests provided for in subsection (1), that
10 the results of the test shall be admissible and shall be consid-
11 ered with other competent evidence in determining the innocence
12 or guilt of the defendant, and that the person charged shall be
13 responsible for obtaining a chemical analysis of the test
14 sample.

15 (6) The person charged shall be advised that if the person
16 refuses the request of a peace officer to take a test described
17 in this section, a test shall not be given without a court
18 order. The person charged shall also be advised that the
19 person's refusal of the request of a peace officer to take a test
20 described in this section shall result in the suspension of his
21 or her operator's or chauffeur's license or operating privilege,
22 and in the addition of 6 points to his or her driver record.

23 (7) This section shall not be construed as limiting the
24 introduction of any other competent evidence bearing upon the
25 question of whether or not the person was impaired by or under
26 the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled substance,
27 or a combination of intoxicating liquor and a controlled

1 substance, or whether the person had a blood alcohol content of
2 0.10% or more by weight of alcohol.

3 (8) If a jury instruction regarding a defendant's refusal to
4 submit to a chemical test under this section is requested by the
5 prosecution or the defendant, the jury instruction shall be given
6 as follows:

7 "Evidence was admitted in this case which, if believed by
8 the jury, could prove that the defendant had exercised his or her
9 right to refuse a chemical test. You are instructed that such a
10 refusal is within the statutory rights of the defendant and is
11 not evidence of his guilt. You are not to consider such a
12 refusal in determining the guilt or innocence of the defendant."

13 (9) If after an accident the driver of a vehicle involved in
14 the accident is transported to a medical facility and a sample of
15 the driver's blood is withdrawn at that time for the purpose of
16 medical treatment, the results of a chemical analysis of that
17 sample shall be admissible in a criminal prosecution for a crime
18 described in subsection (1) to show the amount of alcohol or
19 presence of a controlled substance or both in the person's blood
20 at the time alleged, regardless of whether the person had been
21 offered or had refused a chemical test. The medical facility or
22 person performing the chemical analysis shall disclose the
23 results of the analysis to a prosecuting attorney who requests
24 the results for use in a criminal prosecution as provided in this
25 subsection. A medical facility or person disclosing information
26 in compliance with this subsection shall not be civilly or
27 criminally liable for making the disclosure.

1 (10) If after a highway accident the driver of a vehicle
2 involved in the accident is deceased, a sample of the decedent's
3 blood shall be withdrawn in a manner directed by the medical
4 examiner for the purpose of determining blood alcohol content or
5 presence of a controlled substance or both.

6 Sec. 625c. (1) A person who operates a vehicle upon a
7 public highway or other place open to the general public, includ-
8 ing an area designated for the parking of vehicles, in the state
9 is considered to have given consent to chemical tests of his or
10 her blood, breath, or urine for the purpose of determining the
11 amount of alcohol or presence of a controlled substance or both
12 in his or her blood if:

13 (a) The person is arrested for a violation of section
14 625(1), ~~or~~ (2), (7), (8), OR (9), or 625b, or a local ordinance
15 substantially corresponding to section 625(1), ~~or~~ (2), (7),
16 (8), OR (9), or 625b.

17 (b) The person is arrested for felonious driving, negligent
18 homicide, or manslaughter resulting from the operation of a motor
19 vehicle, and the peace officer had reasonable grounds to believe
20 that the person was operating the vehicle while impaired by or
21 under the influence of intoxicating liquor or a controlled sub-
22 stance or a combination of intoxicating liquor and a controlled
23 substance, or while having a blood alcohol content of 0.10% or
24 more by weight of alcohol.

25 (2) A person who is afflicted with hemophilia, diabetes, or
26 a condition requiring the use of an anticoagulant under the

1 direction of a physician shall not be considered to have given
2 consent to the withdrawal of blood.

3 (3) The tests shall be administered as provided in section
4 625a.

5 Sec. 625i. (1) The department of state police shall prepare
6 an annual report which shall be designated the Michigan annual
7 drunk driving audit. The report shall contain for each county in
8 the state all of the following information applicable to the
9 immediately preceding calendar year:

10 (a) The number of alcohol related motor vehicle accidents
11 resulting in bodily injury, including a breakdown of the number
12 of those injuries occurring per capita of population and per road
13 mile in the county.

14 (b) The number of alcohol related motor vehicle accidents
15 resulting in death, including the breakdown described in subdivi-
16 sion (a).

17 (c) The number of alcohol related motor vehicle accidents,
18 other than those described in subdivisions (a) and (b), including
19 the breakdown described in subdivision (a).

20 (d) The number of arrests made for a violation of section
21 625(1), ~~or~~ (2), (7), (8), OR (9), or a local ordinance substan-
22 tially corresponding to section 625(1), ~~or~~ (2), (7), (8), OR
23 (9).

24 (e) The number of arrests made for a violation of section
25 625b or a local ordinance substantially corresponding to section
26 625b.

1 (f) The number of operator's or chauffeur's licenses
2 suspended pursuant to section 625f for refusal to submit to a
3 chemical test.

4 (g) The number of convictions of crimes enumerated in subdivi-
5 visions (d) and (e).

6 (h) The number of licenses suspended or revoked as a result
7 of convictions of crimes enumerated in subdivisions (d) and (e).

8 (i) The number of restricted licenses issued as a result of
9 convictions of crimes enumerated in subdivisions (d) and (e).

10 (j) The average fine, length of imprisonment, and period of
11 license suspension imposed as part of the sentence for each crime
12 enumerated in subdivisions (d) and (e).

13 (2) The secretary of state and the circuit courts, district
14 courts, and local units of government in the state shall cooper-
15 ate with the department of state police to provide information
16 necessary for the preparation of the report.

17 (3) A copy of the report required under this section shall
18 be submitted to the governor, to the secretary of the senate, and
19 to the clerk of the house of representatives on June 1 of each
20 year.